
 

 

    

 

EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (ESCOG) 

Joint Powers Authority 

 
SPECIAL MEETING AGENDA 

 
Friday, February 14, 2020 

8:30 a.m. 

Mammoth Lakes Council Chamber 

437 Old Mammoth Road, Suite Z 

Mammoth Lakes, CA 

 

Board Members 

 

 
Mono County Supervisor 

Stacy Corless – Vice Chair 

Inyo County Supervisor 

Jeff Griffiths - Chair 

Mono County Supervisor 

Bob Gardner  

Inyo County Supervisor 

Dan Totheroh 

Town of Mammoth Lakes Councilmember 

Lynda Salcido 

City of Bishop Councilmember 

Jim Ellis 

Town of Mammoth Lakes Councilmember 

John Wentworth  

City of Bishop Councilmember 

Karen Schwartz 

 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting please contact the Clerk of the Board at 760-965-3603.  Notification 48 

hours prior to the meeting will enable the City of Bishop or Town of Mammoth Lakes to make 

reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting. (See 42 USCS 12132, 28CFR 

35.130) 

 

NOTE: Comments for all agenda items are limited to a speaking time of three minutes. 

 

1. Call to Order 

  

2. Pledge of Allegiance  



 

 

 

3. Roll Call 

 

4. Public Comment – Notice to the Public:  This time is set aside to receive public 

comment on matters not calendared on the agenda.  When recognized by the Chair, 

please state your name and address for the record and please limit your comments to 

three minutes.  Under California law the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Board is 

prohibited from generally discussing or taking action on items not included in the agenda; 

however, the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Board may briefly respond to 

comments or questions from members of the public.  Therefore, the Eastern Sierra 

Council of Governments Board will listen to all public comment but will not generally 

discuss the matter or take action on it. 

 

5. Approve the Minutes of the December 13, 2019 regular meeting (of the ESCOG). 

  

6. Discussion and possible action on elect new officers for the position of Chair, Vice 

Chair and Secretary for ESCOG -JPA. 

 

7. Discussion on update regarding the filing of the needed Joint Powers Agreement 

Establishing the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments as a separate Legal Entity 

from its Member Agencies.  

 

8. Discussion and possible action on the establishment of Ad Hoc Committees to review 

and bring recommendations back to the full ESCOG - JPA Board on matters 

related to the administration and operations to include at least the following:  

Bylaws; Budget – FY19-20; Financial Processes and member commitments and 

Fiscal Agent Agreement, Legal Representation, ESCOG-JPA Insurance; Conflict of 

Interest Code; and Executive Director Term, Selection, and Duties. 

 

9. Discussion with Mono County Finance Director, Janet Dutcher regarding the 

ESCOG – JPA fiscal services and processes provided by Mono County Department 

of Finance.  

 

10. Update on the Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 

including Partnership Meetings on January 6th and February 3rd, and establishment 

of liaison between the ESCOG-JPA and ESSRP to review future opportunities. 

 

11. Update on the Prop 68/Sierra Nevada Conservancy’s “Sustainable Recreation and 

Tourism” Grant, administered by the Town of Mammoth Lakes on behalf of the 

regional partners 

 

12. Update on Bishop Eastern Sierra Regional Airport (BIH) Air Service. 

 

13. Discussion regarding Grant Opportunities, including Innovative Finance for 

National Forest grant application “Inyo Forest Campgrounds” and USDA Rural 

Development Rural Business Development Grants (RBDG) 



14. Update on housing activities from all member agencies.

15. Member Reports

16. Discussion and action on establishing a regular meeting schedule, time and place(s)

for ESCOG-JPA and/or next meeting and Call for Agenda Items

17. Adjournment



STAFF REPORT 

Eastern Sierra Council of Governments 

Joint Powers Authority 

Mono County Board of Supervisors 

Inyo County Board of Supervisors 

Bishop City Council 

Mammoth Lakes Town Council 

Subject:  Next steps for implementation of the Eastern Sierra Council of 

Governments Joint Powers Authority (ESCOG-JPA) 

Prepared by: Daniel C. Holler, Mammoth Lakes Town Manager 

RE: Report reference: Agenda Items 6, 7, 8, and 9. 

Meeting Date: February 14, 2020 

BACKGROUND: 

The creation of the Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers Authority 

(ESCOG-JPA) has been approved by each of the four member agencies. The last approval 

was by Mono County on January 7, 2020. The formal first date of the new ESCOG-JPA is 

therefore January 7, 2020. The ESCOG-JPA filing with the Secretary of State is complete 

(see Agenda Item #7). As provided for in previous staff reports several steps or actions are 

involved in the creation and implementation (Administration and Operations) of the new 

ESCOG-JPA.  

Adoption of the JPA created a new governmental entity in the Eastern Sierra. The JPA 

structure is provided for under State law and is a legal process used by multiple agencies 

across the state to provide regional services. The Eastern Sierra Transit Authority (ESTA) 

is a local example.  This body will have those duties, powers and authority as provided for 

in the JPA formation documents (see final agreement in Agenda Item #7).  

This staff report addresses a number of steps that the new ESCOG-JPA will need to 

complete and identifies some timelines and recommendations. This is the the first meeting 

of the new entity and as such, some housekeeping items need to be taken care of as well as 

providing direction on next steps. Rather than preparing several smaller reports, this one 

staff report was prepared to discuss the next steps in an overall context. The specific agenda 

item discussions by the Board will need to be conducted based on the specific agenda item 

under consideration.  

Agenda Item #6



2 

 

 

 

NEXT STEPS 

 

As the new ESCOG-JPA is now approved, various actions will need to be taken regarding 

the administration and operation of the new separate legal entity. The following steps have 

been identified by staff and legal counsel. 

 

1. File the JPA formation document with the Secretary of State (Completed - Agenda 

Item #7). A copy of the filing document and the signed approvals are attached for 

your review and reference.  

 

2. The JPA documentation establishes the composition of the Board of Directors 

including members and alternates (Section 4.02). If a member agency has not 

designated an alternate(s) it is recommended that this action be considered. Current 

members are authorized to continue under the current terms. 

 

3. The JPA document calls for the Board to elect from its members a Chair and Vice 

Chair per Section 4.02(c). It is recommended that the Board take formal action to 

elect these two positions (Agenda Item #6). The term of the Chair and Vice Chair 

is one (1) year. The agreement provides for the current serving members in those 

positions to serve out their terms, which previously followed a calendar year.  

 

4. The JPA document also provides the appointment of a Secretary from the 

membership and provides that this position may be an administrative staff person. 

The duties of the Secretary are not defined in the formation documentation. It is 

recommended that the duties of the Secretary be defined in the ESCOG-JPA 

Bylaws. If the initial intent is to simply have the Secretary preform the “clerking” 

duties currently provided by the Town of Mammoth Lakes, then appointment of 

the current Town Assistant Clerk to the position is acceptable. If the intent is for 

the position to take on additional administrative duties, then any appointment 

should be postponed until such time that the duties are defined. The Board may 

appoint a member to serve as Secretary, but again the specific duties are undefined 

(Agenda Item #6). 

 

5. Provide direction on financial administration. The financial structure will be 

discussed under (Agenda Item #9).  Mono County is serving as the current fiscal 

agent for the ESCOG-JPA. An agreement for these services will need to be drafted 

and approved. The initial procedures need to be discussed. Staff is recommending 

that each agency provide initial start up funds in the amount of $16,500 per agency 

for the remainder of FY19-20 or as otherwise agreed to by the members. A previous 

report recommended $16,300. Staff supports the full amount as the ESCOG-JPA 

will likely have some unanticipated expenses or higher than projected costs. 

 

6. Budget Adoption. Outside of the Clerking services which are funded for the whole 

year (currently projected at $20,600), a budget will need to be developed for the 

remainder of FY19-20. Again, an “Ad Hoc” committee may be established to 

prepare a preliminary budget for Board consideration (Agenda Item #8) and to 



3 

 

 

 

address any additional financial considerations. A draft budget based on current and 

previous estimates is provided below. 

 

7. Adopt Bylaws for the ESCOG-JPA. As part of the administrative function a set of 

bylaws will need to be developed and approved by the Board. It is recommended 

that an “Ad Hoc” Committee to be established under (Agenda Item #8) be review 

and recommend a set of draft bylaws for the Board to consider. A very basic draft 

set of Bylaws are provided as a reference. 

 

8. Adopt a Conflict of Interest Code. This will need to apply to board members and 

defined staff. A copy of the Code used by the Town of Mammoth Lakes is attached 

as a reference. An “Ad Hoc” committee may be used to prepare recommendations 

for the Board to consider. (Agenda Item #8). This Code is required to be adopted 

within six months of the agency formation.  

 

9. Board members will need to file assuming office Form 700s. As a new legal entity 

these filings are due 30 days following the adoption of the Conflict of Interest Code.  

 

10. Secure insurance for the JPA. This will include liability, workers compensation, 

crime bond, and other types of insurance that may be required for the JPA. An “Ad 

Hoc” committee may be used to prepare recommendations for the Board to 

consider. (Agenda Item #8). 

 

11. Acquire legal counsel. It is recommended that the JPA initially contract with a 

member agency. The JPA may contract directly with other legal counsel as well. If 

a member agency is willing to provide legal support an agreement may be drafted 

by the member agency for JPA Board consideration or an “Ad Hoc” committee 

may be formed to recommend a means of securing legal services and/or to work on 

an agreement with a member agency. (Agenda Item #8). 

 

12. Set regular meeting schedule. A formal adoption of the meeting schedule by a 

resolution is recommended. Agenda Item #16 provides for setting a meeting 

schedule and/or at least your nest meeting. Setting regular meetings informs the 

public, staff, member agencies and board members of such times. Regular 

scheduled meetings have specific noticing and agenda requirements. This also 

allows the Board to call for special meetings, which have different noticing 

requirements. Schedule for next ESCOG-JPA Meeting – Agenda Item #16. 

 

13. Hire/Contract for an Executive Director. The primary staffing for the ESCOG-JPA 

was proposed to be a part-time Executive Director. The position may be filled with 

a current member agency staff, if available or a part-time employee or contract 

position. The Board will need to review benefit options and if more than a part-time 

employee, entering into an agreement with PERS, assuming the JPA will be a PERS 

agency. The Board may discuss the hiring of an interim Director to assist the above 

workload and to assist in the hiring process. This work may be directed through an 

“Ad Hoc” committee (Agenda Item #8). 



4 

 

 

 

 

As the ESCOG-JPA has no office or “home”, it is recommended that the Town of 

Mammoth Lakes mailing address and physical location be used at this time. The Clerk can 

handle incoming mail or other routine clerical support. The Town currently provides office 

support in terms of supplies, equipment for the Clerk, and related items. 

 

The above represents a significant work program to be undertaken over the next few 

months. The Board will need to set priorities and realistic goals in moving forward. Current 

member staff may be able to assist but have limited capacity, which will likely fall to Inyo 

County and the Town of Mammoth Lakes.  

 

DISCUSSION 

 

The above items are discussed together in this report, but the Board will need to discuss 

each appropriate item under the noted agenda item. Compiling this list of next steps 

together allows the Board to see the initial steps that need to be taken and to understand 

the potential workload.  

 

Under Agenda Item #8 information is provided on the use of “Ad Hoc” committees as 

provided by the League of California Cities.  The following recommendations are made 

for the use of such committee(s), with a reminder the committee may only include Board 

Members: 

 

1) Use the minimum number necessary to achieve a recommendation, with a suggestion of 

not more than three (in some cases two may be adequate). As the JPA documentation 

allows for a simple majority (5 members) which includes a member from each agency to 

take final action using an Ad Hoc of four members from each agency may be perceived as 

an effective majority quorum making a recommendation (i.e. only one additional vote is 

needed to pass the recommendation). Maintaining more limited numbers on Ad Hoc 

committees eliminates the appearance of decision-making outside of a formal meeting. 

This also spreads the workload among members. The focus and duration of the committees 

will be different. 

 

2) Each Ad Hoc is to have a defined purpose and timeline. This is important to keep the 

committees from functioning as a standing committee which has different rules. 

 

3) Determine what are the critical steps and address them accordingly. The ESCOG-JPA 

has no formal staff support at this time, so the work effort will primarily fall on Board 

Members, with limited support from the member agencies.  

 

The following “Ad Hoc” Committees may be considered under Agenda Item #8: 

• Financial process, administration and agreement with Mono County 

• Budget – draft budget for FY19-20 (set member contributions) 

• Bylaws  

• Conflict of Interest Code (within 6 months of agency formation) 



5 

 

 

 

o File Form 700s within 30 days of adopted conflict of interest code 

• Insurance – Type and Provider(s) 

• Legal Representation – source & agreement 

• Executive Director – selection process, duties, etc.  

 

Projected Budget 

 

 
 

Attachments 

 

1) State Filing of Joint Powers Agreement 

2) Conflict of Interest Code – Town of Mammoth Lakes 

3) Draft Bylaws 

4) Legislative Bodies – Use of “Ad Hoc” Committees 

Cost by Agency

Activity Full Year

FY19-20 

(1/2 Year)

Executive Director1 50,000.00    6,250.00    

Clerk/Clerical2 30,000.00    5,150.00    

Legal Servcies3 10,000.00    2,500.00    

Fiscal Agent4 2,400.00      600.00       

Insurance/Other 8,000.00      2,000.00    

Total 100,400.00 16,500.00 

1 Assumes part-time contracted position or member agency provided

2 Assumes current level of servcie provided for all of FY19-20 (less than projected)

3 Assumes contract with member agency

4 Assumes contract with member agency



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 1 
 
 

State Filing of Joint Powers Agreement 
 

  

























 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 2 
 
 

Conflict of Interest Code – Town of 
Mammoth Lakes 

  



RESOLUTION NO. 18- 59

RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF MAMMOTH
LAKES, STATE OF CALIFORNIA, APPROVING AND ADOPTING AN

AMENDED CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE PURSUANT TO THE POLITICAL

REFORM ACT OF 1974

WHEREAS, the State of California enacted the Political Reform Act of 1974, 

Government Code Section 81000, et seq. ( the " Act"), which contains provisions

relating to conflicts of interest which potentially affect all officers, employees and
consultants of the Town of Mammoth Lakes ( the "Town") and requires all public

agencies to adopt and promulgate a conflict of interest code; and

WHEREAS, the Town Council adopted a Conflict of Interest Code ( the " Code") 

which was amended on November16, 2016, in compliance with the Act; and

WHEREAS, subsequent changed circumstances within the Town have made it

advisable and necessary pursuant to Sections 87306 and 87307 of the Act to
amend and update the Town' s Code; and

WHEREAS, the potential penalties for violation of the provisions of the Act are

substantial and may include criminal and civil liability, as well as equitable relief
which could result in the Town being restrained or prevented from acting in cases
where the provisions of the Act may have been violated; and

WHEREAS, notice of the time and place of a public meeting on, and of
consideration by the Town Council of, the proposed amended Code was
provided each affected designated employee and publicly posted for review at
the offices of the Town Clerk; and

WHEREAS, a public meeting was held upon the proposed amended Code at a
regular meeting of the Town Council on August 1, 2018, at which all present
were given an opportunity to be heard on the proposed amended Code. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of The Town of
Mammoth Lakes as follows: 

1. The Town Council does hereby adopt the proposed amended Conflict of
Interest Code, a copy of which is attached hereto and which shall remain
on file with the Town Clerk and shall be available to the public for

inspection and copying during regular business hours; and

2. Said amended Conflict of Interest Code shall become effective

immediately after the adoption and approval of this Resolution (" Effective
Date"). 



Resolution No. 18- 59

Page 2

APPROVED AND ADOPTED THIS 1st day of August, 2018. 

ATTEST: 

J M E GRAY, Town Jerk

V. CLELAND HOFF, Ntr



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

OF THE

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

Amended August 1, 2018) 

The Political Reform Act (Gov. Code § 81000, et seq.) requires state and

local government agencies to adopt and promulgate conflict of interest codes. The Fair

Political Practices Commission has adopted a regulation ( 2 Cal. Code of Regs. § 

18730) that contains the terms of a standard conflict of interest code, which can be

incorporated by reference in an agency's code. After public notice and hearing Section

18730 may be amended by the Fair Political Practices Commission to conform to

amendments in the Political Reform Act. Therefore, the terms of 2 California Code of

Regulations section 18730 and any amendments to it duly adopted by the Fair Political

Practices Commission are hereby incorporated by reference. This incorporation page, 

Regulation 18730 and the attached Appendix designating positions and establishing

disclosure categories, shall constitute the conflict of interest code of the Town of

Mammoth Lakes (the "Town"). 

All officials and individuals holding designated positions required to submit

a statement of economic interests shall file their statements with the Town Clerk as the

Town's Filing Officer. The Town Clerk shall make and retain a copy of all statements

filed by the Mayor, Members of the Town Council and Planning Commission, the Town

Manager, the Town Attorney and the Town Treasurer, and forward the originals of such

statements to the Fair Political Practices Commission. The Town Clerk shall retain the

original statements of all other designated positions and make all retained statements

available for public inspection and reproduction during regular business hours. ( Gov. 

Code § 81008.) 



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

APPENDIX

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES

CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

Amended August 1, 2018) 

PART " A" 

The Mayor, Members of the Town Council and Planning Commission, the
Town Manager, the Town Attorney, the Town Treasurer, and All Other Town Officials
who manage public investments, as defined by 2 Cal. Code of Regs. § 18700.3( b), are

NOT subject to the Town's Conflict of Interest Code but must file disclosure statements
under Government Code section 87200 et seq. [Regs. § 18730(b)( 3)] 

OFFICIALS WHO MANAGE PUBLIC INVESTMENTS

It has been determined that the positions listed below are Other Town Officials
who manage public investments.' These positions are listed here for informational

purposes only. 

Financial Consultant

Individuals holding one of the above -listed positions may contact the Fair Political Practices
Commission for assistance or written advice regarding their filing obligations if they believe that
their position has been categorized incorrectly. The Fair Political Practices Commission makes
the final determination whether a position is covered by § 87200. 



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

DESIGNATED POSITIONS

GOVERNED BY THE CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE

DESIGNATED POSITIONS' DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

TITLE OR FUNCTION ASSIGNED

Airport Maintenance Coordinator 5

Airport Manager 2, 3, 5

Assistant Engineer 2, 3, 5, 6

Assistant to the Town Manager 5

Associate Planner 2, 3, 5, 6

Building Official 5, 6

Community and Economic Development Director 1, 2

Engineering Assistant 2, 3, 5, 6

Engineering Manager 1, 2

Executive Assistant to the Police Chief 5

Executive Director, MLH 1, 2

Executive Director, MLR 1, 2

Executive Director, MLT 1, 2

Finance Manager 4

Fleet Superintendent 5

Human Resources Manager 5

Industry Relations & Sales Manager 2, 3, 5

Parks Manager 5

Permit Technician 6

Plans Examiner/Engineer 5, 6

Police Chief 5

Public Works Director 1, 2

Public Works Maintenance Manager 5

Parks and Recreation Director 2, 3, 5

Recreation Supervisor 5



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP

DESIGNATED POSITIONS' 

TITLE OR FUNCTION

Sales Manager

Senior Public Works Inspector

Program and Facilities Coordinator

Tourism Marketing Manager

Town Attorney (not filing under GC 87200) 

Town Clerk

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES
ASSIGNED

MEMBERS OF BOARDS, COMMITTEES 8, COMMISSIONS

5

2, 3, 5, 6

5

1, 2

5

Building Advisory Committee/ Board of Appeals 1, 2

Mammoth Lakes Housing 1, 2

Mammoth Lakes Recreation 1, 2

Mammoth Lakes Tourism 1, 2

Recreation Commission 1, 2

Consultants and New Positions2

Individuals serving as a consultant as defined in FPPC Reg 18700.3(a) or in a new position
created since this Code was last amended, that makes or participates in making decisions must
file under the broadest disclosure requirements set forth in this Code subject to the following
limitation: 

The Town Manager may determine that, due to the range of duties or contractual obligations, it is
more appropriate to assign a limited disclosure requirement. A clear explanation of the duties
and a statement of the extent of the disclosure requirements must be in a written document. 
Gov. Code § 82019; FPPC Regs 18219 and 18734.) The Town Manager' s determination is a

public record and shall be retained for public inspection in the same manner and location as this
Conflict of Interest Code. ( Gov. Code § 81008.) 



LAW OFFICES OF

BEST BEST & IMEGER LLP

PART " B" 

DISCLOSURE CATEGORIES

The disclosure categories listed below identify the types of economic
interests that the designated position must disclose for each disclosure category to
which he or she is assigned.3 " Investment" means financial interest in any business

entity ( including a consulting business or other independent contracting business) and
are reportable if they are either located in or doing business in the jurisdiction, are
planning to do business in the jurisdiction, or have done business during the previous
two years in the jurisdiction of the Town. 

Category 1: All investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of
income, including gifts, loans and travel payments, that are located in, that do business
in or own real property within the jurisdiction of the Town. 

Category 2: All interests in real property which is located in whole or in part within, or
not more than two (2) miles outside, the jurisdiction of the Town. 

Category 3: All investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of
income, including gifts, loans and travel payments, which engage in land development, 
construction, or acquisition or sale of real property within the jurisdiction of the Town. 

Category 4: All investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of
income, including gifts, loans and travel payments, that provide services, products, 
materials, machinery, or equipment of a type purchased or leased by the Town. 
Category 5: All investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of
income, including gifts, loans and travel payments, that provide services, products, 
materials, machinery, or equipment of a type purchased or leased by the designated
position' s department, unit or division. 

Category 6: All investments and business positions in business entities, and sources of
income, including gifts, loans and travel payments, subject to the regulatory, permit, or
licensing authority of the department, unit or division. 

Category 7: All Investments, business positions and income, including gifts, loans and
travel payments, or income from a nonprofit organization, if the source is of the type to
receive grants or other monies from or through the Town. 

s This Conflict of Interest Code does not require the reporting of gifts from outside this agency' s
jurisdiction if the source does not have some connection with or bearing upon the functions or
duties of the position. ( Reg. 18730. 1) 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA ) 

COUNTY OF MONO ) ss. 

TOWN OF MAMMOTH LAKES) 

I, JAMIE GRAY, Town Clerk of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, DO HEREBY CERTIFY

under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of Resolution No. 18- 59
adopted by the Town Council of the Town of Mammoth Lakes, California, at a meeting thereof
held on the 1 sc day of August, 2018, by the following vote: 

AYES: Councilmembers Salcido, Stapp, Wentworth, Mayor Pro Tem Sauser, 
and Mayor Hoff

NOES: None

ABSENT: None

0-Mv". I1Z ZlC - 

DISQUALIFICATION: None

Rlia



 
 
 
 

 
 

ATTACHMENT 3 
 
 

Draft Bylaws 
  



DRAFT 

Bylaws 

Of 

The Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers Authority (ESCOG-JPA 

 

ARTICLE I 
MEETINGS 

 

Section 1:  Regular Meetings. 

The Eastern Sierra Council of Governments Joint Powers Authority (ESCOG-JPA) shall hold regular 

meetings of at least one per quarter.  The time and place of such meetings shall be set by the ESCOG-JPA 

Board (Board) in accordance with the requirements of the Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code §§ 

54950 et seq.) (the “Brown Act”). 

Section 2:  Special Meetings. 

Special meetings may be called by the Chair at his or her discretion, or by the Chair upon request by a 

Director, in accordance with the requirements of the Brown Act.   

Section 3:  Cancellation of Meetings. 

The Chair may cancel any regular or special meeting, unless there is an objection by a Director.  The 

Chair, any Director, or Secretary may cancel a meeting for lack of a quorum. 

Section 4: Committee Meetings. 

The ESCOG-JPA may establish standing committees with the meetings of such committees to be set be 

called by the designated Chair or by the Committee.  

Section 5: Notice and Conduct of Meetings. 

All meetings shall be noticed and conducted in accordance with the requirements of the Brown Act. 

 
ARTICLE III 
OFFICERS 

 

Section 1. Chair  

The Directors shall elect from among them a Chair.  The Chair shall be elected annually at the first 

regular meeting of each calendar year. 

Section 2: Vice-Chair 

The Directors shall elect from among them a Vice-Chair.  The Vice-Chair shall be elected annually at the 

first regular meeting of each calendar year.  The Vice-Chair shall act in the place of and have all of the 

powers and duties of the Chair in the Chair’s absence. 



DRAFT 

 

Section 3: Secretary 

The Secretary shall prepare an agenda and take minutes of all meetings of the ESCOG, maintain a public 

record of the ESCOG’s meetings, transactions and business.  The Secretary may be a Board Member, an 

employee of the ESCOG-JPA, a regular paid employee of a Member Agency, or a person or firm retained 

by contract as determined by the Board. The secretary shall be elected annually at the first regular 

meeting of each calendar year. 

Section 4:  Executive Director 

The ESCOG-JPA may employ an Executive Director to serve at the pleasure of the Board.  Such Executive 

Director may be a regular paid employee of any Member Agency or an outside individual or firm as 

determined by the Board.  

 

ARTICLE V 
COMMITTEES 

 
Section 1: Committees 

The Directors may establish such technical and/or advisory committees as determined to be necessary 

or desirable to serve the needs and accomplish the purposes of the ESCOG-JPA. 

 

ARTICLE VI 
AMENDMENTS 

These Bylaws may be amended by a majority vote of the Directors at any regular meeting provided that 

notice of the proposed amendment has been submitted in writing by the Secretary to the Directors at 

least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the meeting at which the amendment is proposed to be 

considered. 

 
ADOPTED this _________ day of ____________, 2020. 
 
 

 
      ______________________________ 
      Chair 
      Eastern Sierra Council of Governments 
 
 
ATTEST:       
 
 
_________________________    
Secretary      

 



 
 
 
 

 
 
 

ATTACHMENT 4 
 
 

Legislative Bodies – Use of “Ad Hoc” 
Committees 

 















DEPARTMENT OF FINANCE 
AUDITOR-CONTROLLER 

COUNTY OF MONO 

Vacant 

Assistant Finance Director 

Auditor-Controller 

Janet Dutcher, CPA, CGFM, MPA 

Director of Finance 

P.O. Box 556 

Bridgeport, California 93517 

(760) 932-5490

Fax (760) 932-5491 

To: JPA Members, Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG or JPA) 

From: Janet Dutcher, Mono County Director of Finance 

Date: February 14, 2020 

Re: Fiscal services and processes for ESCOG 

The purpose of this agenda item is to communicate the set-up of the ESCOG JPA account 

in the Mono County Investment Pool and to recommend processes for making deposits, 

disbursements, and financial reports.   

Background 

The Joint Powers Agreement section 5.04 appoints Mono County Director of Finance as 

the JPA’s fiscal agent, treasurer and auditor, to deposit money, have custody of funds, and 

perform all treasury related functions.  Members of the JPA share equally in the cost of the JPA, 

at 25% each.  The first year (2019-20) share of costs were estimated at $16,300 each. 

ESCOG JPA Account in Mono County Investment Pool 

Fund 308 is established in the Mono County accounting system.  This fund is to track all 

JPA deposits, make disbursements, and to prepare reports to the ESCOG members, the State, and 

the public.  At this time, no annual audit is required.  The JPA is required to report to the State 

Controller’s Office in its financial transaction reporting system, upon notification from the State.  

We anticipate providing the JPA members periodic balance sheet and income statement reports. 

Agenda Item #9



Page 2 

Initial Deposit from JPA Members 

Initial first year (2019-20) JPA costs were estimated at $65,200, or $16,300 by each 

member.  Costs supporting these estimates are as follows: 

The JPA requires some level of immediate contribution from its members in order to pay 

expenses.  Otherwise, the JPA is indirectly borrowing from other Mono County pooled 

participants every time a disbursement is made.  Contributions can be made by check or warrant 

made out to the County of Mono and mailed to Mono County Department of Finance, P.O. Box 

556, Bridgeport CA 93517.  If your agency has an existing account in the Mono County 

accounting system, contributions can also be made by journal entry, by using the Finance 

Department’s usual process (complete the appropriate form and transmit to your Mono County 

Finance Department contact).  We recommend an immediate contribution from each JPA 

member of $16,300.   



Page 3 

Paying ESCOG Costs 

Mono County Finance Department will ensure ESCOG vendors are paid promptly and 

timely.  We ask that all invoices (originals) be sent directly to: Mono County Finance 

Department, P.O. Box 556, Bridgeport CA 93517, with an attention of ESCOG if possible.    

Internal Controls and Accounting Processes 

Public agencies in California are required to have proper internal controls in place.  One 

type of internal controls designed to protect ESCOG assets involves segregating incompatible 

duties between separate positions or individuals.  Here, authorization to pay vendor invoices 

should be segregated from those having custody of cash, including the ability to prepare and 

remit checks or warrants.   We recommend the JPA’s chair provide authorization to pay 

vendors.  By doing so, internal control segregation of incompatible duties has been achieved. 



Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 
Monday February 3, 2020 – 3:30 PM 

USFS Inyo NF Mammoth Ranger District – Mammoth Lakes, CA 
Items Highlighted in Yellow are attached to the Agenda or will be presented during the meeting 

Page 1 of 6 

The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) is a unique public/public partnership between regional land managers and local 
jurisdictions to develop innovative public land stewardship solutions and create a replicable sustainable recreation program in California’s 

magnificent Eastern High Sierra. 

1. Introductions

2. The Partnership Partnership Signatories: Alpine County*; City of Bishop*; Inyo County*; Mono County;
Town of Mammoth Lakes; Inyo National Forest; Humboldt-Toiyabe National Forest - *have voted to sign
partnership agreement Web Page: https://www.essrp.org

3. Partnership: Wins and Actions

a. ESSRP “Innovative Finance for National Forests Grant Program” – Inyo NF and MLTPA
i. February 3 update: Full application due February 18:

1. IFNF Pre-Application approved for Full Proposal Submission - 01
a. 01_IFNF-Pre-Proposal-Application-2019_MLTPA
b. 02_IFNF Full Proposal Invite

2. Upgrade 72 campgrounds on Inyo NF and adjacent county lands
a. Grant application is for feasibility & profitability study
b. Grant request is for $150,000 to create a business plan.

ii. Project Update – Nora Gamino, Inyo NF
1. Phone call with USDA Rural Development

a. Kim Vann, CA Director; Timothy W. O'Connell, West Region Coordinator
2. Requests for Letter of Support
3. Partnership Discussion
4. Action Items

b. National Parks System (NPS) “Rivers Trails and Conservation Assistance” - MLTPA
i. February 3 update: NPS/RTCA Staff

1. 03_Visitor Capacity Guidebook Primer_Edition 1_IVUMC
2. 04_VUM_Framework_Primer_IVUMC

ii. Next Steps:
1. Partnership Discussion
2. Action Items

c. Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Coordinator – Matthew Paruolo
i. February 3 updates:

1. External Funding Opportunities
a. SNC - Vibrant Recreation and Tourism Grant - Buckeye Hotsprings

Agenda Item #10



Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 
Monday February 3, 2020 – 3:30 PM 

USFS Inyo NF Mammoth Ranger District – Mammoth Lakes, CA 
Items Highlighted in Yellow are attached to the Agenda or will be presented during the meeting 

Page 2 of 6 

The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) is a unique public/public partnership between regional land managers and local 
jurisdictions to develop innovative public land stewardship solutions and create a replicable sustainable recreation program in California’s 

magnificent Eastern High Sierra. 

b. OHV Grants and Agreements - OSV Education Grant - “Winter Recreation
Handout”

c. Recreational Trails Program - Motorized - “Backroad Tours of the Eastern
Sierra” Guidebook

2. Adopt-A-Trail Program
a. Pilot Program to launch April, 2020

3. “Enjoy and Care for the Eastern Sierra” Gateway Monument
a. Update

ii. Next Steps:
1. Partnership Discussion

Action Items

4. Partnership: Governance

a. Eastern Sierra Council of Governments (ESCOG) Joint Powers Authority – Partners
i. Action by Local Jurisdictions:

1. Notice of JPA and Filing Fee (mailed) to the Secretary of State
2. Copy of executed Agreement (mailed) to the State Controller’s Office

ii. Update: ESCOG Meeting – February 14, 2020 @ 08:30 in Bishop
iii. Next Steps:

1. Partnership Discussion
Action Items

b. ESSRP Governance Committee
i. February 3 Update: “Proposed Decision-Making Guidelines” – Bob Gardner

1. 05_025_30 ESSRPMoA1-25-2020_04_EXCERPTS
ii. Members of Governance Committee

1. Jan Cuts – (Humboldt-Toiyabe NF)
2. Jeff Griffiths – (Inyo County)
3. Nora Gamino (or Tammy Randall Parker) – (Inyo National Forest)
4. Dan Holler - (to assign from TOML)
5. David Griffith – (Alpine County)
6. Participant needed from City of Bishop

iii. Next Steps
1. Partnership Discussion
2. Action Items



Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 
Monday February 3, 2020 – 3:30 PM 

USFS Inyo NF Mammoth Ranger District – Mammoth Lakes, CA 
Items Highlighted in Yellow are attached to the Agenda or will be presented during the meeting 

Page 3 of 6 

The Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) is a unique public/public partnership between regional land managers and local 
jurisdictions to develop innovative public land stewardship solutions and create a replicable sustainable recreation program in California’s 

magnificent Eastern High Sierra. 

c. Partner Updates
i. Alpine County

ii. City of Bishop
iii. Inyo County
iv. Inyo National Forest, USFS
v. HT National Forest, USFS

vi. Town of Mammoth Lakes
vii. Mono County

viii. ESSRP Partners in Process
1. BLM
2. LA DWP
3. CALTRANS

5. Partnership: Housekeeping
a. Meeting Schedule for 2020 (First Monday of the Month @ 3:30)

i. Monday March 2 @ 3:30 (Bishop)
ii. Monday April 6 @ 3:30 (Mammoth)

iii. Monday May 4 @3:30 (Bishop)
iv. Monday June 1 @ 3:30 (Mammoth)
v. Monday July 6 @ 3:30 (Bishop)

vi. Monday August 3 @ 3:30 (Mammoth)
vii. Monday September 7 @ 3:30 (Labor Day – Bishop)

viii. Monday October 5 @ 3:30 (Mammoth)
ix. Monday November 2 @ 3:30 (Bishop)
x. Monday December 7 @ 3:30 (Mammoth)

b. NOTE: New Conference Call Dial In Number
i. Dial in Number: 1-800-839-9416

ii. Participant PIN: 9728681
c. Meeting Packets

i. Distributed by Friday Morning Prior to Monday Meeting
d. Overview

i. Partnership Discussion
ii. Action Items

6. Partnership: Agenda Items for Next Regular Meeting (Monday March 2 @ 3:30 in Bishop)



Eastern Sierra Sustainable Recreation Partnership (ESSRP) 
“Proposed Decision-Making Guidelines” 

Excerpted from “Draft Memorandum of Agreement (MOA)” 

The ESSRP is: 

1. A unique public/public partnership developing innovative public lands stewardship
solutions for California and across the country.

2. An example of a replicable public/public partnership for local, state and federal
agencies.

3. As a collaborative ESSRP is not a corporate person, and cannot enter into contracts,
apply for funding, have employees, sue or be sued, or pay taxes.  There is also no legal
protection for individuals acting on behalf of ESSRP.

Expectations of ESSRP Partners: 

1. Attend ESSRP meetings regularly (not miss three consecutive meetings), participate in
ESSRP deliberations and decisions, and as and when appropriate, be involved in
activities supported or sponsored by the ESSRP.

2. Treat others in the ESSRP with respect and expect to be treated with respect.
3. Work towards collaborative resolutions of ESSRP issues.
4. Share pertinent information with the ESSRP, its workgroups and individual members.
5. Assist in and advocate for the achievement of the collaborative goals of the ESSRP.
6. Share experience and expertise as a means of advancing the ESSRP’s common interests.
7. Educate others in the community and member’s workplace on the ESSRP and its

activities.
8. Support and share as appropriate and available resources for achieving the projects,

initiatives, funding proposals, and related activities collaboratively approved by the
ESSRP.

9. Voice opinions and concerns openly and listen to the opinions and concerns of others.
10. Expectations for ESSRP Meetings:
11. ESSRP deliberations and discussions occur in meetings of the ESSRP, in standing and in

ad hoc Work Groups assigned by a meeting of the ESSRP, and among members and
other stakeholders between meetings.

12. ESSRP decisions occur only at a meeting duly noticed with an agenda sent to the
members and interested party’s distribution list or other approved notification method.

13. ESSRP meetings are to consider items listed on the agenda with attached supporting
material distributed at least five (5) calendar days prior to the meeting.

14. A meeting quorum consists of (?) members.
15. The meeting agenda is merely a method for the ESSRP to provide an orderly meeting

process and a meeting with a quorum may among other actions add to, change order,
table or refer agenda items to an ad hoc group for deliberation and recommendation.



16. Regularly scheduled ESSRP meetings are normally held on the first Monday of the
month at (?), but the time and place may be changed provided that such change is
noted in the meeting agenda

17. The ESSRP can schedule additional meetings when and if needed.
18. Much of the work, deliberations and actions resulting from ESSRP decisions occurs

between full ESSRP meetings in standing and ad hoc groups, and the ESCOG as needed.
19. Ad hoc group deliberations and recommendations are brought forth to the ESSRP

through the meeting agenda process.
20. Moderators for ESSRP meetings facilitation should be rotated amongst willing MOA

signatories or their representative.
21. ESSRP meetings are generally moderated in an informal manner that encourages broad

discussion and input. More formal facilitation may occur when and if needed in order to
make a clear decision.

22. Agenda items and issues brought to the attention of a meeting may be discussed for
general information, to coordinate resources and opportunities, or any other reason
and not require the ESSRP approval by a formal consensus or vote.

23. Attendees who are not members may regularly participate in meeting deliberations, but
they are not included in any decisions.

The ESSRP makes decisions using the following: 

1. If there is no objection, meeting items discussed and considered routine or obvious may
be stated as an ESSRP action by the Moderator and noted for the minutes.

2. After ESSRP discussion and deliberation of an issue any member may make a motion for
a consensus decision, a second by any other member is needed for consideration.

3. If a motion is considered the meeting Moderator asks for and facilitates discussion on
the motion, which is then approved, disapproved or referred to an ad hoc group.

4. When canvassed by the Moderator for a decision, a member may approve, abstain, or
disapprove of a consensus decision; all of the members eligible to participate in the
decision at a meeting must approve or abstain for a consensus approval decision.

5. A consensus approval decision at a minimum requires a quorum including at least two
directors of the ESCOG (?).

6. If extended deliberation is needed to benefit the decision on the motion (a referred
motion), the issue may be referred to an ad hoc group appointed to include at least the
points of view represented by proponents, opponents and those neutral to meet and
work out a resolution and recommendation for a future meeting.

7. If disapproved the decision is recorded in the meeting minutes.
8. The ad hoc group assigned a referred motion returns a recommendation whereby every

reasonable effort is made to seek a solution crafted to achieve ESSRP consensus.
9. If the ad hoc group cannot with good faith effort craft a likely consensus it will develop

an inventory report listing the strengths, weaknesses, opportunities and threats
identified from their deliberations related to not finding a consensus resolution.

10. The ESSRP will consider the ad hoc group’s recommendations on an agenda of a duly
called meeting with a quorum, and deliberations will result in a consensus decision of



approval or disapproval; or, the item may be sent back for another try at finding a 
solution.  

11. In the event that there is no consensus decision, and the proponents still wish to
proceed, the ad hoc group may recommend that the ESSRP consider a supermajority
decision by the ESSRP.  A supermajority decision requires 75% of the members to vote in
favor at a regular meeting of the ESSRP to pass.

12. If a consensus decision is approved, it is assigned to a member, an ad hoc group, or the
ESCOG for implementation and to make status reports to the ESSRP at future meetings.

The graphic below illustrates the process. 

Proposal 

ABC 
Consensus 
Approval

No 

Project 
Proceeds 

Ad hoc 
group No 

Yes 

Project 
Does Not 
Proceed 

Yes
s 

 Supermajority 
Approval Yes 

No 

Loop may be 
used more than 

once 

Least 
desirable 

path 



Agenda Item #13



What is an eligible area? 
RBDG funds must be directed for projects benefitting rural 
areas or towns outside the urbanized periphery of any city 
with a population of 50,000 or more. Check eligible areas. 

How much funding is available? 
There is no maximum grant amount for enterprise or 
opportunity type grants; however, smaller requests are 
given higher priority. Generally, grants range from $10,000 
up to $500,000. There is no cost sharing requirement. Total 
opportunity type grant funding is limited statutorily to up to 
10% of the total RBDG annual funding.

How may funds be used? 
Enterprise type grant funds must be used on projects to 
benefit small and emerging businesses in rural areas as 
specified in the grant application. Uses may include: 

• Training and technical assistance, such as project
planning, business counseling/training, market research,
feasibility studies, professional/technical reports, or
product/service improvements

• Acquisition or development of land, easements, or rights
of way; construction, conversion, renovation, of buildings,
plants, machinery, equipment, access streets and roads,
parking areas, utilities

• Pollution control and abatement

• Capitalization of revolving loan funds including funds
that will make loans for start-ups and working capital

• Distance adult learning for job training and advancement

• Rural transportation improvement

• Community economic development

• Technology-based economic development

• Feasibility studies and business plans

• Leadership and entrepreneur training

• Rural business incubators

• Long-term business strategic planning

Opportunity type grant funding must be used for projects 
in rural areas and they can be used for: 

• Community economic development

• Technology-based economic development

• Feasibility studies and business plans

• Leadership and entrepreneur training

• Rural business incubators

• Long-term business strategic planning

What does this program do?
RBDG is a competitive grant designed to support targeted technical assistance, training and other activities leading to the 
development or expansion of small and emerging private businesses in rural areas that have fewer than 50 employees and less 
than $1 million in gross revenues. Programmatic activities are separated into enterprise or opportunity type grant activities.

Who may apply for this program? 
Rural public entities including, but not limited to: 

• Towns

• Communities

• State agencies

• Authorities

• Nonprofit Corporations

• Institutions of Higher Education

• Federally recognized Tribes

• Rural Cooperatives

Rural Business Development Grants (RBDG) 



Add contact information

NOTE: Because citations and other information may be subject to change please always consult the 
program instructions listed in the section above titled “What Law Governs this Program?” You may 
also contact your local office for assistance. You will find additional forms, resources, and program 
information at www.rd.usda.gov. USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Last Updated May 2016

How are applications evaluated for 
competitive funding? 
RBDG applications compete at the state office level, which 
are dependent on appropriations. 

All applications are evaluated based on: 

• Evidence showing job creation to occur with
local businesses;

• Percent of nonfederal funding committed to the project;

• Economic need in the area to be served;

• Consistency with local economic development priorities;

• Experience of the grantee with similar efforts; and

• Other factors described in the current Notice of Solicitation
of Applications (NOSA), if one is published.

How do we get started? 
Applications are accepted through USDA Rural 
Development’s local or State offices once per year. 
Applicants are advised to view program information specific 
to your local or State office to learn about local application 
timelines, concept paper requirements, etc. 

Grant awardees will need to complete required paperwork 
and comply with the terms and conditions of the award. 
Contact your local or State office for details.

Who can answer questions? 
Contact your local office. 

What governs this program? 
• Basic Program – 7 CFR Part 4280, Subpart E

• This program is authorized by the Consolidated Farm
and Rural Development Act (ConAct)

What governed the predecessor 
programs of RBEG and RBOG, as well 
as all awards given before FY 2015? 
• RBEG Basic Program - RD Instruction 1942-G

• RBOG Basic Program - 7 CFR Part 4284

• This program was authorized by the Consolidated
Farm and Rural Development Act (ConAct)

Why does USDA Rural Development 
do this? 
This program provides grants for rural projects that finance 
and facilitate development of small and emerging rural 
businesses, help fund distance learning networks, and 
help fund employment related adult education programs. 
To assist with business development, RBDGs may fund a 
broad array of activities.

Rural Business Development Grants (RBDG) 



2020 ESCOG Meeting Schedule – FINAL 

EASTERN SIERRA COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 
MEETING SCHEDULE – 2020 

Friday, February 14 8:30 AM Mammoth Lakes Town Council Chamber 

Friday, April 10 8:30 AM Bishop City Council Chamber 

Friday, June 12 8:30 AM Mammoth Lakes Town Council Chamber 

Friday, August 14 8:30 AM Bishop City Council Chamber 

Friday, October 16 8:30 AM Mammoth Lakes Town Council Chamber 

Friday, December 11 8:30 AM Bishop City Council Chamber 

Agenda Item #16




